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Welcome to this first edition of the Essex Industrial Archaeology Group’s (EIAG) Newsletter for 2019.

2019 promises to be a very exciting year for EIAG, with half a dozen events, listed below, of industrial and transport interest, the most prominent being its third Industrial Heritage Fair which is to be held this year at Sandford Mill Museum in Chelmsford in October. Early Spring will also see the launch of EIAG’s first publication, a revised and up-dated version of Stanley Wood’s Chelmsford Industrial Trail, first published in 1987. Further details of these two events will appear in this Newsletter during the year.
If you have any comments on the Newsletter generally or specific items in it, or wish to make a contribution to the next Newsletter, please contact us via our email address - essexiag@gmail.com.
Programme of ESAH/EIAG visits 2019
The programme of visits in 2019 includes the following of industrial, maritime and transport interest. Full details and booking instructions were circulated with the Autumn/Winter 2018 ESAH Newsletter, so book your places soon to avoid disappointment:
Morant Lecture. Saturday 9th March 2019, 2:00 pm, Queens Hall, Chipping Hill, Halstead, CO9 2BY. Talk by John Miners about Textiles of East Anglia, followed by a look around the Halstead & District Local History Society museum - £5.00 – see below for further details
East Anglian Railway Museum. Wednesday 24th April 2019, 10:30 am. A guided tour of the heritage centre and Victorian station buildings - £5.00

Colliers Brick and Tile Works. Wednesday 21st August 2019, 10:30 am. Church Lane, Marks Tey, CO6 1LN. Brick making by hand using traditional methods - £5.00

Stow Maries Airfield. Saturday 14th September 2019, 10:00 am. Hackmans Lane, Purleigh, CM3 6RN. Tour and history of the site. £12.00 including traditional cream tea.
Industrial Heritage Fair 2019. Saturday 5th October 2019, 10:00 am – 4:00 pm. Sandford Mill Museum, Chelmsford, CM2 6NY. Society and museum stalls and five short talks. Free admission. Light refreshments available all day. More details to follow in future newsletters.
EIAG Annual Meeting. Saturday 9th November 2019, 2:00 pm. Chelmsford Museum. AGM followed by a talk by Jim Lewis on the industries of the Lea Valley – Free for members, £2.00 for non-members.
The ESAH 2019 Morant Lecture

The ESAH 2019 Morant Lecture on 9th March 2019 at 2pm is being hosted by Halstead and District Local History Society and its chairman, John Miners, is the guest speaker.  In his young days he had close associations with Courtaulds and for the last thirty years has been a textile consultant.  He is a director of the Warner Textile Archive Trading Company.  The archive is owned by the Braintree District Museum Trust and is the second largest archive of publically owned textiles in the UK.  It includes textiles, paper designs, original printing blocks, photographs and other ephemera relating to Warner and Sons of Braintree from the late 1800s.  John’s subject is ‘Textiles in East Anglia’ with a particular emphasis on Courtaulds and Warners.   The Queens Hall, Chipping Hill, Halstead, where the lecture is being held, also houses the new Halstead Heritage Museum.  There will be an opportunity to look round the museum, which contains many items of industrial interest, including Courtauld artefacts.  There will be books for sale and refreshments available.  All members of EIAG and ESAH are welcome to attend.
Adrian Corder-Birch

Old Lifeboat House at East Terrace, Walton-on-the-Naze

In December 2018 Historic England listed 23 “unusual” structures in England.  Among them was one from Essex namely the Old Lifeboat House at East Terrace, Walton-on-the-Naze.  This was among the buildings listed to preserve them for the nation in a Historic England tribute to the “modest” structures of community life.  “It demonstrates that even the modest and functional structures can form eloquent and valuable memorials for their local communities.”  The listing of the Old Lifeboat House at Walton-on-the-Naze protects it for future generations.[image: image5.png]Chimsiod Caporaton Water Warks now Sanlod i useum
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Adrian Corder-Birch
Volunteers welcome

Earlier this month EIAG Committee members met with Essex CC Place Services staff who have responsibility for the work on the Historic Environment including maintaining the Essex Historic Environment Record (EHER). The EHER is a database of all known archaeological sites and monuments, historic buildings and parks and gardens in Essex. It is a comprehensive database of all items of historic interest within the current administrative county and Thurrock unitary authority. The EHER contains over 30,000 records and the database is supported by an extensive library of photographs, national and local publications, and by an archive of other sources, including so called ‘grey literature’ (unpublished fieldwork reports), dissertations, and card indexes. Staff in Place Services would welcome and train anyone with an interest in the historic environment to input onto the EHER. If you are interested and would like to know more, do speak to myself or Adrian Corder-Birch, or email me at essexiag@gmail.com
Tony Crosby
A short note on the very short operational life of Boreham airfield. 
It was one of ten proposed to be built in Essex in 1943 to enable blanket bombing of German positions before the D-Day landings. This offensive was to be carried out by the 9th United States Army Air Force. 
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On 13th May 1943 the 861st Engineer Aviation Battalion of approx. 560 men started to arrive at the 620 acre site at Boreham that included Dukes wood that had to be removed. They were given 12 months to complete the work. The weather was bad and the area often a sea of mud but they worked a two shift system over 24 hours using floodlights only stopping for air raids. Built to Class A Bomber Standard it had three runways with the longest running in the north-west, south-east direction that was over a mile long. Each runway was 145 feet (44.2 metres) wide. The perimeter track was three miles long and fifty feet (15.3 metres) wide. About 130,000 tons of concrete were used. Some 212 Nissen huts were built on the north side of the airfield as well as one of the main hangars. None of these buildings now remain. From photos of the airfield it was in operational use as the Engineers of the 394th Bomb Group were still constructing it.
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The planes flown by the 394th were B26 Martin Marauders which carried a 4,000lb bomb load. 64 eventually arrived from the USA with the first one landing on 24th February 1944. The 1st mission was carried out on 23rd March 1944, 36 aircraft dropped some 50 tons of bombs on a target in France. On July 24th 1944 after 96 missions and 5,453 tons of bombs dropped the Americans moved base to near Bournemouth as the target range had become too long. The airfield saw little further use until operation Varsity – this was the crossing of the Rhine at Wesel on 24th March 1945. Then the 315th Troop carrier Group provided 81 C47 Dakotas from Boreham to carry nearly 1,300 paratroopers of the British 6th Airborne division.
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In 1949 the 50ft (15.3 metres) wide perimeter track was found to provide a super car racing circuit said to be better than Silverstone. Many of the world’s greatest drivers raced at the circuit up until the last race in 1952. From 1955 the Ford Motor Company used the site for vehicle development, later reduced to minimal after closure of the Ford Motorsport department. It is now the headquarters for the National Police Air Service covering the area to the north and east of London with helicopters, its crews using the original control tower as their offices.
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Soon to be demolished is the last major building.  It was set back and to the north of the airfield because of its importance. It survived as it was converted to service quarry vehicles when the area was exploited for gravel. This Operations and Headquarters building is a single storey brick structure varying in height, with a flat concrete roof. It had airlock entries and was dependent on artificial lighting and ventilation hence the need for two ‘chimneys’ one for heating and one for ventilation. Internally the building was divided into several rooms each with a particular function. The largest and tallest was the Op’s Room itself with a ‘sortie board’ fixed to one wall showing each aircraft’s details; in addition there was a canteen, rest rooms, telephone exchange (PBX) connecting the airfield to the outside world, toilets and Wireless Telegraphy W/T Room. Very little detail of this had survived the conversion.
Elphin Watkin.
Association for Industrial Archaeology (AIA)

EIAG is an affiliated society of this national and, indeed, international organisation, the Association for Industrial Archaeology (AIA). Full details of the AIA can be found on their website at http://www.industrial-archaeology.org/. Your Chairman and Vice-Chairman are both individual members. As an affiliated society, EIAG receives copies of the AIA’s regular publications, a quarterly Newsletter (IA News) and a bi-annual Journal, Industrial Archaeology Review, each edition of which contains about five learned, peer reviewed articles on a variety of research projects from the UK and other parts of the world. These copies are deposited in the ESAH library.
The Winter 2018 edition of IA News includes a short article on the Harwich Train Ferry Gantry. Harwich Town Council is seeking the relisting, by Historic England, of the gantry from Grade II to Grade II*. Such a relisting would strengthen a request to have it put on the ‘At Risk‘ register. This it is felt to be necessary as the Gantry, an iconic structure of the townscape, is deteriorating due to lack of maintenance by the current owners and might be lost if urgent action is not taken. Your Chairman has written a letter on behalf of EIAG, to Harwich Town Council, supporting their moves towards relisting and registering the gantry as ‘At Risk’.

[image: image13.jpg]



New Publication coming soon!
Published just before Christmas and to be launched on 27th February is the revised and up-dated version of Stanley Wood’s 1987 publication Chelmsford Industrial Trail.
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Revised and up-dated edition 2018

In 1987 Stanley Wood wrote the Chelmsford Industrial Trail for the ‘Chelmsford Industrial Museum Society and Essex Schools’, targeted at residents of the town, visitors and teachers planning field trips – very much an educational tool. He recognised Chelmsford as having been ‘the birthplace of a great modern industry deeply affecting all our daily lives’. He continued: ‘in Chelmsford Marconi started the radio industry … so we can say that the world electronics industry, one of the most typical of 20th century activities [and still so in the 21st century], sprang from … Chelmsford’. Wood felt that ‘Chelmsford is a town with a great story … [if] you live here you should know the story and be proud of it’
To mark the 30th anniversary of Wood’s innovative guide, this new edition includes those industrial sites in Wood’s original which survive, albeit in an altered state, 30 years later, describing what changes have taken place, but also highlighting those sites which have been totally lost and redeveloped. As Wood was principally interested in the industries established in the town during the 19th and 20th centuries, most of which were still operating in 1987, he omitted some of the more traditional industries such as malting and brewing, so this new edition includes sites associated with these industries. This addition of sites which Wood did not include also reflects the expansion in the interests of industrial archaeologists, and so a number of sites of workers’ housing are included.
Details of how to obtain your copy will be in the March Newsletter.
News from the Victoria County History (VCH) of Essex
The VCH was founded in 1899 and was originally dedicated to Queen Victoria. It is the greatest publishing project of English local history, researching England’s places and people from the earliest times to the present day. In Essex, the VCH’s publications are produced in collaboration with the VCH Essex Trust. To date, eleven volumes, known as ‘red books’ have been published and, more recently, the first Essex ‘short’, a study of Newport, appeared in 2015. The main focus is on Tendring Hundred for which the most recent ‘red book’, Volume 11: Clacton, Walton and Frinton: North-East Essex Seaside Resorts, was published in 2011. Volume 12, which covers the earlier history of parishes along the Tendring coast, will be published in two parts, the first of which will appear this year. Particular attention is now given to Harwich, for which a ‘short’ volume will include a study of Harwich, Dovercourt and Parkeston in the 19th century. Other ‘shorts’ may include a study of the military history of Harwich. Eventually, shorts can be combined to form a larger ‘red book’ volume. The VCH in Essex no longer receives local authority funding so a major fund-raising campaign has been launched to ensure this important historical research can continue. Further information about the VCH can be obtained from the Editor, Dr Christopher Thornton, FSA, FRHIstS, VCH Essex, Essex Record Office, Wharf Road, Chelmsford, Essex, CM2 6YT. The volumes are available at the ERO and major libraries, and Volumes 4 to 10 and part of volume 2 are available at www.british-history.ac.uk. To find out more about the national VCH project, visit: www.victoriacountyhistory.ac.uk.
Paul Gilman


[image: image4]
Headquarters Building





Photograph 29/02/1944
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All large openings later. A low air lock entry survived at the right.
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